
 

 

The Mayor’s European Social Fund (ESF) 2019 – 2023 Programme Round 3 

Careers Clusters – Questions and Answers  
 
Q1: Page 6 (or 8 sequentially) of the Careers Clusters Project Requirements states: 
‘We anticipate that each of the five Careers Cluster grants will be awarded to a 
different bidder. There may be cases where the same bidder is awarded more than 
one grant, but no single bidder can deliver more than two careers clusters (of the 
ESF 2019 – 2023 programme)’. If an organisation has 1 or more Careers Clusters 
awarded currently, can they be considered to bid for an additional 2 in this round 3 
stream? Or as the rest of the spec looks largely the same (Dec 2019) has this line 
remained in place but the rule been superseded? 
 
A: Although our expectation is that each of the five Careers Cluster grants awarded 
in this round will be awarded to a different bidder, you may submit a bid for more 
than one Careers Cluster grant and we have not ruled out the same bidder being 
awarded up to two grants in this round where the quality and coverage of their bids 
relative to the other bids that we receive justifies this. However, we will not award 
more than two Mayors' ESF 2019-23 Programme Careers Clusters grants or 
contracts to any organisation.  
 
So, if you were not awarded a Mayors' ESF 2019-23 Programme Careers Clusters 
contract in December 2019 (Round 1) you could be awarded a maximum of two 
Careers Clusters grants in this round; if you were awarded one Careers Clusters 
contract in Round 1 you could be awarded a maximum of one additional Careers 
Clusters grant in this round; and if you were awarded two Careers Clusters contracts 
in Round 1, you will not be eligible to be awarded a Careers Clusters grant in this 
round. 
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Q2: In the latest report by AGCAS, they have predicted that internships and work 
placements will slump by 40%. Will the Career Clusters targets for work placements 
be reviewed in light of the economical crisis? 
 
A: Bidder's should submit an Application that aims to meet the published Project 
Requirements including the proposed outputs and outcomes, as a minimum. Bidders 
are asked to set out the number of schools, pupils and employers they will engage 
and support in order to achieve the minimum output and outcome requirements and 
to explain their rationale for these numbers. If you believe that the delivery 
environment has/will become more difficult as a result of Covid-19, you should 
address this in your application and explain how your methodology will enable you to 
manage and respond to this risk. If the delivery environment changes significantly 
and/or unexpectedly after grants have been awarded the GLA will consider these 
circumstances as they arise. 
 
Q3: What student data will you require? And how do providers evidence a decrease 
in NEET levels within the 3 year project? 
 



 

 

A: The student data we ask Providers to collect to monitor engagement in the 
Careers Cluster Project is set out in the Evidence and Delivery Handbooks. The data 
we may ask Providers to use to report on impact measures of the Careers Cluster 
will be drawn from published sources. This may include school/college published 
destination figures. 
 
Q4: Is there a minimum requirement on the number of employer interactions that 
each of the 720 participants receive across the 3 years of the project? 
 
A: The GLA's expectation is that at least 720 students will benefit from interactions 
with employers. A student is expected to have at least one beneficial interaction. 
Although when planning the 26-week pilot activities with employers, it is likely a 
student will engage more than once with a pilot activity, or, that a student will engage 
with more than one pilot activity. 
 
Q5: Can the work experience placements take place during school holidays? 
 
A: The work placements can take place at any time throughout the duration of the 
project. Bidders should take into account student and work placement provider 
needs. 
 
Q6: 'We are currently delivering a round 2 careers cluster programme and are 
considering to submit applications for this current round (round 3). Please can you 
confirm if we can be awarded as the prime, 2 further cluster programmes during this 
round?’ 
 
A: If a Provider is already contracted to deliver one Careers Cluster project in the 
Mayors' ESF 19-23 programme, we could award them a maximum of one grant, to 
deliver one further Careers Cluster project, in this funding round. 
 
Providers can hold a maximum of two Careers Cluster contracts/grants under the 
Mayor's ESF 19-23 Programme. Please see response to question 1 above. 
 
Q7:  We are currently delivering a round 2 careers cluster programme and are 
considering to submit applications for this current round (round 3). Please can you 
confirm if we can be awarded as the prime, 2 further cluster programmes during this 
round? 
 
A: Please see the answer to Q1 in this Q&A. 
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Q8: I have a question regarding the ESF Careers Clusters opportunity which is 
currently advertised. Are we required to submit completed Partnership Declaration 
Forms for all schools and colleges who are partners in the Cluster? 
 
A: Bidders are not required to submit signed declaration forms from schools/colleges 
if it is not possible to achieve this due to current COVID-19 restrictions. Bidders 
should confirm the schools and colleges that have agreed to be a member of their 



 

 

careers cluster at application stage. Successful bidders will be required to obtain 
signed Partnership Declaration Forms become grants are signed. 
 
Q9: We are completing Q1.4 (rationale for geography/sector) and 100 words does 
not seem sufficient for a robust response to a question with 3 bullet pointed sub-
questions. Would you consider expanding this to 250 words? 
 
A: Apologies, this is an error. The maximum word count for Question 1.4 on the 
Careers Cluster Application Form should be 1000 words. We have published a 
version 2 of the Careers Clusters Application Form om 09/06/2020 correcting this 
error.  
 
Q10: The Prospectus discusses the sub-regional partnership areas within London – 
can a careers cluster include schools from more than one sub-regional partnership 
area? Is it preferred that all the schools in a cluster were from one particular sub-
regional partnership area? 
 
A: Bidders can form a cluster within a borough, cross borough or across-sub-
region(s). Bidders should set out their rationale for the cluster geography and/or 
sector for the Careers Cluster and how schools and colleges will be able to work 
collaboratively. Relationships with Local Authorities should also be taken into 
account. 
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Q11: On page 14 of the application form provides space to list “any other ESF 
Delivery partners that will be informally involved in the delivery of your project and 
are unpaid”. Is this where we should list Micro/SMEs that we will be working with on 
the programme? If so do we need to evidence buy-in from them? 
 
A: In this section bidders should list any known organisations/ stakeholders they will 
work with to support delivery. These organisations are not sub-contractors/sub-
grantees. The organisations listed here might include stakeholders such as local 
authorities, HEIs and employers, although we are not expecting bidders to have a full 
list of organisations that will support pilots at this stage - as this will be developed 
with the Cluster members. 
 
Q12: One of the project deliverables is that “each Cluster must deliver at least 18 
pilot employer/HEI activities for pupils, which must be sustained for at least 26 
weeks”. Firstly, does this mean in each school there needs to be at least one defined 
activity that occurs each week for 26 weeks, or the various pilot activities planned 
need to span a period of 26 weeks? Secondly, would an activity focused around 
informing young people about Higher Level and Degree Apprenticeships fall under 
HEI? And if that’s the case, would working with employers offering HLDA be 
sufficient, or would a HEI need to be involved also? 
 
A: Pilot activities should aim to sustain employer and HEI relationships with Careers 
Clusters and improve CEIAG for students. Bidders should decide how their activities 
can achieve this aim. Pilot activities should demonstrate they are planned and 
designed to span at least 26 weeks. However, there is no set requirement for the 



 

 

number of activities for each pilot i.e. one activity per week. As regards the second 
point. A pilot could be employer-led or HEI-led. Pilot projects may also involve 
working collaboratively with employers and HEIs. It is for the Cluster to determine the 
appropriate engagement to achieve the aims of each of the pilots. 
 
Q13: Whether a pupil could be counted for undertaking both a work placement and 
internship or would this be deemed as double counting? 
 
A: The project output requirements for pupils benefitting from each Careers Cluster 
are: a minimum of 720 pupils to take part in pilot activities; and a minimum of 500 
pupils take part in work placement. A pupil can only be counted once for each project 
output. Therefore, a pupil can take part, and be counted in, both pilot activity and 
work placement outputs. This is not double counting. If a pupil takes part in more 
than one pilot activity they can only be counted once as benefiting from this 
activity/output. 
 
Q14: This has a maximum word limit on the form of 100 words I was wondering 
whether it should be 1000 
 
A: Please see response to Q9. 
 
Q15: Can you please clarify whether it is the BAME % that needs to be 74% or 
whether it is that all PP percentages that must add up to at least 74% across the 
whole school? 
 
A: Section 1.4 of the Project Requirements sets out the indicators that qualify a 
school/ college to be eligible to benefit from careers cluster support. 
Schools/colleges must meet at least one of the three indicators: Pupils entitled to 
Free School meals above 15%; pupils from Black and Minority Ethnic communities 
above 74%; or number of pupils with special educational needs or a disability above 
14%. Each percentage applies as a percentage of the total pupil population of each 
school/ college. 
 
Q16: Are there any stakeholder declaration forms that you require participating 
schools/colleges to complete? Would a general programme specific signed SLA 
suffice as evidence that a school/college agree to participate in the programme? 
 
A: Please see response to Q8.  
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Q17: Should funding be claimed for each individual young person entering Work 
Placement/internship or is there a threshold e.g. of 500 young people, which needs 
to be reached before being eligible to claim funding for these outcomes? 
 
A: Payments will be made against each work placement delivered (up to the 
maximum value for this project output/result). Bidders will propose the number of 
work placements they will deliver over the duration of the project. The total number 
of work placements must be entered into the project Payment Trigger Calculator 
(PTC). The PTC will calculate the unit cost per work placement (number of 



 

 

placements/ total budget available for this output/result). Payments will be made 
against the number of work placements delivered each quarter and reported through 
the quarterly claims process. 
 
Q18: What constitutes a sustained SME engagement in Pilot activities? Is it also a 
minimum of 26 weeks of delivering Pilot activities? 
 
A: SMEs engaged in Careers Cluster activities should complete an Employer 
Beneficiary Engagement Form confirming their eligibility (as an SME) and an 
Employer Feedback Form identifying the benefits to their business of the Careers 
Cluster activity(ies) they have taken part in. SMEs could be engaged in Careers 
Cluster pilot activities as well as work placements. It is only the employer (and/or 
HEI) lead for a 26 week pilot that completes the confirmation of engagement in a 
pilot activity for the sustained period of 26 weeks (the 26 Week Employer/HEI 
Activity Pilot Completion Form). The employer lead for a Careers Cluster pilot may or 
may not be an SME. If an SME is a lead for a pilot activity, the SME will complete an 
HEI/Employer Activity Pilot Engagement Form as well as completing the 26 Week 
Employer/HEI Activity Pilot Completion Form. 
 
Q19: Are all schools'/colleges' Needs Analysis required to be completed prior to go-
live, or is there a defined grace period from go-live in order to complete? 
 
A: The school/ college Needs Analysis is not required to be completed before the 
project start. Once grant awards are made, the Needs Analysis will form part of the 
Careers Cluster activity to confirm the needs of each Cluster member and to identify 
how the Careers Cluster activities can support identified needs (in line with specific 
reference to Gatsby Benchmarks as set out in the Project Requirements). 
 
Q20: In relation to the Careers Cluster opportunity, can you please tell us where to 
find a list of all the schools that have already participated in the previous 2 rounds of 
Careers Clusters. We have followed the link in the guidance and although that does 
show details of the various Cluster programmes that have been delivered, it doesn't 
appear to have a list of the schools that participated. To ensure we do not spend 
time contacting schools that are not eligible or inadvertently include schools that 
have already participated, this list would be very useful. Please can you advise 
where we can locate it? 
 
A: Apologies, the link in the Project requirements leads to a summary of the first 
round of Careers Cluster projects. The list of schools and colleges previously/or 
currently participating in Careers Clusters can be found with the ESF 19-23 R3 
tender documents on the website: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-
do/funding/european-social-fund/funded-projects 
 
 
Q21: Please may the Commissioner clarify whether Individualised Learner Record 
returns are required for this project? 
 
A: Individual Learner Records are not required for Careers Cluster Projects. 
Evidence of pupils/ students participating in the projects can be evidenced by 



 

 

feedback forms. Evidence of work experience taking place will be evidenced by a 
work experience form. An example of each is provided in the Evidence Handbook. 
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Q22: A college group has already been named within a careers can we work with an 
individual campus which may not have benefited from the original careers cluster 
because of the geography? The rationale for this is because he merging of colleges 
across London has resulted in fewer larger college groups which large geographical 
spread. 
 
A: Where colleges are part of a wider college group we will consider each college as 
a separate entity in terms of eligibility to benefit from a Careers Cluster. An individual 
college that has not already benefitted from a Careers Cluster project is eligible to to 
be included as a member of a Careers Cluster in this procurement round. 
 
Q23: We are in a situation where we are the lead-applicant for a Careers Cluster bid 
in one sub-region of London, and are receiving a request to support second Careers 
Cluster bid in a different sub-region of London as a delivery partner. Would being a 
part of this second bid as a delivery partner weaken our first bid as a lead-applicant? 
 
A: Organisations can be a lead bidder for an Application as well as contributing as a 
Delivery Partner or subcontractor in another application. All bidders should ensure 
the resources allocated to the delivery of their proposals are set out and that 
adequate resources are confirmed. 
 
Q24: We are hoping to have a particular college be a delivery partner on the Careers 
Cluster bid that we are the lead applicant, but that college is hoping to lead on its 
own Careers Cluster application, where we may be a potential delivery partner. 
Would being part of this second bid as a delivery partner weaken our first bid as 
lead-applicant? 
 
A: Each Application will be assessed on its own merit. 
 
Q25: Please could the Authority provide further clarity on its response to Q12 
regarding the 26-week pilots. Do each of the 18 pilot activities need to span 26 
weeks on an individual basis? Or could multiple pilot activities be put together to 
create a 26-week programme of activities? 
 
A:  Each of the Careers Cluster pilots must span 26 weeks on an individual basis. In 
order to start a pilot that spans 26 weeks, each pilot should set out its objective(s) 
and planned activities. This may include a number of activities to achieve the 
objective, or may run the same/similar activity several times to engage and provide 
benefit across different Careers Cluster member schools. A pilot may also deliver 
one significant activity. See Q28 below. 
 
Q26: Again on 26-week pilots, if we deliver a Careers Fair and the planning, 
advertising, event and evaluation take 26-weeks does this count as spanning 26 
weeks? 
 



 

 

A: It is possible that one significant activity would span 26 weeks. Careers Cluster 
pilots should bring something new and add value - enhancing the careers education, 
information, advice and guidance for students. Using the example of a careers fair, a 
careers fair held in one school may not add value if the school already holds a 
careers fair, or if it is not adding anything different or innovative. However, a new 
approach to delivering a careers fair might be appropriate to demonstrate a 26 week 
pilot. For example, this might include developing a new shared approach to holding a 
careers fair - engaging students across all the Careers Cluster members and 
improving and increasing employer engagement. 
 
Q27: ‘it is stated that Each Careers Cluster should have a minimum of ten 
school/college members and at least one member must be a college. Will a sixth 
form that is part of a maintained school be eligible as a college? The sixth form is on 
the same site but has a separate building’ 
 
A: Each careers Cluster should have an FE College or 6th Form College as part of 
its cluster. A sixth form as part of a secondary school is not eligible as a separate 
institution. The aim of having a separate post-16 institution is to raise awareness, 
and increase opportunity, from the diversity of post-16 progression options for 
students. 
 
Q28: Regarding the grant value of £400,000, is this a minimum or maximum 
amount? Also, am I correct in thinking that, if £400,000 will be the value of all grants 
awarded, that an organisation must a turnover of at least £666,666 (of which 
£400,000 is 60% of) to be eligible? 
 
A: The grant value of £400,000 is the maximum available per Careers Cluster. The 
grant value to sales turnover parameter is not looked at in isolation, there are three 
other ratios that the GLA uses which carry equal weighting in terms of scores 
allocated when determining financial health of organisations. The ratios are 
calculated based on the latest set of financial information provided by an 
organisation which covers a period of one year and is not based on an average 
which covers the period of the whole contract value. 
 
Q29: Can a provider run the same pilot activity twice within the contract period, over 
different six month periods? E.g. employability workshops in year one of the contract, 
repeated (for different students) in year 2. And if so, would that count as two 
separate pilot projects towards the target of 18? 
 
A: Each 26 week pilot should be different/ have different objectives and activities. 
Activities repeated as part of the same pilot objective, benefiting students in the 
same school or across different schools, will demonstrate that the pilot activities are 
sustained. 
 
Q30: Would it be acceptable to include large employers in 26-week pilots as well as 
SMEs/micro employers? And would it be acceptable to have a pilot activity that is 
soley focused on a large employer? If we include a large employer outside of the 
minimum number of small employers to be engaged is this acceptable? 
 



 

 

A: It is acceptable to include large employers in 26 week pilot activities and it is also 
possible for a pilot to only work with one large employer or HEI. Careers Clusters are 
encouraged to engage with a broad range of employers. The GLA requirement is for 
at least 22 SMEs to engage with Careers Cluster activities and for at least 15 SMEs 
to confirm how they have benefitted from careers cluster activity. 
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